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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

OF

A HOLDINGS, INC.

For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2012
SEC dentification Number; CS200602356 3. BIR Tax identification No. 244-858-888-500

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: GMA HMCLDINGE, INC.

Philippines 5 | (SEC Use Only)

Province, Courtry or other jurisdiction Industry Classification Code!

of incorporation or organization

Unit 50 Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Glohal City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

Address of principal office Postal Code

{632} 9827777
issuer's telephone number, including area code

Mot Applicable
Cormer name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last repor.

. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the R34
Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Cutstanding
Philippine Depositary Receipts {“PDRs™) 857,509,800
_Are any or ali of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange.
Yes [v] Ne [ 1

if yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securilies iisted thersin:



Philippine Stock Exchange/ PDRs
12. Check whether the issuern

(a) has filed all reports required fo be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and R8A Rule 11{a)-1 thereunder, and Sactions 28 and
144 of The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12} months {or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required fo file such reporis};

Yas [v] No [ ]
(b} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (80) days.

Yes [V} No [ ]

13. State the aggregate market vaiue of the voting stack held by non-affiliates of the registrant.

The aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the siock

was sold, or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within

sixty {60) days prior to the date of filing. If 3 defermination as to whether a parlicuiar person

or entity is an affiliate cannct be made without involving unreascnable effort and sxpenss,

the aggregate market value of the common siock held by non-affiliates may be calculated

on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the circumsiances, orovided the assumplions
are set forth in this Form. (See definition of "affiliate” in “Annex BT

Not Applicable

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reporis required to be filed by Section
17 of the Code subseguent to the distribution of securilies under & plan confirmed by & ¢

or the Commission.

Not Appiicable
PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

tem 1. Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., {the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 18, 2008, As 2
holding Cempany, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquirs own, hotd,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, of otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, nonds and debentures. Ths Company
has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs") issued by the Company were listad with he
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE") on July 30, 2007. :
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GH! does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation io the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. commen shares (*Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the cbligations under the PLRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Sheares underlying the PDRs, which inciudes
a

o
o

maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Fhilippine Persen for as
iong Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-FPhilippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One MoKinley Flace, Mew
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on refated parties.

Not applicable.

Employees:

The Company had no fullime employees as of December 31, 2012 and does not aniicipate
acguiring any employess within the next ansuing 12 months. No labor unions are pressnt
within the Company.

tem 2. Properiies

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does riot lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company is not, and has not been, a party 1o any iegal proceeding.
em 4. Submission of Matters io a Yote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted o a vote of security holders during the fourih guarter of the
fiscal year.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
e 5. Market for lssuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matiers

Market Information

(a) Securities Soid and Consideration therefor

The Cormpany first offered PDRs relaiing o GMA Network, Inc. Commen Shares on July 31,
2007 at the price of Php8.50. These oNRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on he

same date. Of the PDRs offered, 91,346,000 PDRs were offered on behalf of the Company {the
“Crimary PDR Offer”) and 730,769,000 PDRs were offered on behalf of ceriain existing

o~
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shareholders of the Company, namely Group Management and Development, Inc., FLG
Management and Development Corporation, M.A. Jimensz Enterprises, Inc., Television
International Corporation, Gozon Development Corporation and Gozon Foundation {coliectively,
“Selling Shareholders”) (the “Secondary PDR Offer”). Of the 730,769,000 PDRs relating to
Commpon Shares offered on behalf of the Selling Shareholders, 256,829,164 came from Group
Management and Development Corporation, Inc., 212, 829,164 came from FLG Management
and Develocpment Corporation, 147,249,954 came from M.A. Jimenez Enierprises, Inc.,
108,475,350 came from Television International Corporation, 4,516,152 from Gozon
Development Corporation and 1,468,846 came from Gozon Foundation, Inc.

GMA Network, Inc. raised gross proceeds from the Domestic Share Offer and Primary PDR
Offer of approximately P1,552.9 million. After deducting estimated, applicable fass,
underwriting fees, commissions and expenses related to the Combined Offer of aporoximaiely
P129.4 million, net proceeds to GMA Network Inc. from the Combined Offer of approximaiely
F1,423.5 miliion.

GMA Network Inc. did not receive any proceeds from the Secondary PDR Offer. Taxes, issus
management, underwriting and seliing fees and other fees and expenses periaining to the
Secondary PDR Offer were for the account of the Selling Shareholdars.

Each of GHl and the Selling Sharehciders granted the Deutsche Bank AG (Sole Global
Coordinator, Domestic Lead Underwriter and Issue Manager) an option, exercisable for 30 days
from the date of listing and when frading of the Common Shares and PDRs on the Philippine
Stock Exchange (“FSE"), to purchase or piace up to 123,317,000 PDRS.

Other than the foregoing, no securities were sold which were not registered under the Code
within the past three (3) years.
(b} Underwriters and Other Purchasers

ATR KimEng Capital Partners, Inc. acts as Joint Lead Manager, Domestic Lead Underwriter for
GHI and the Selling Shareholders. The participating underwriters are as follows:

(1) BDO Capital and investment Corporation
(2) First Metro Investment Corporalion
(3) Unicapital incorporated
(4) Abacus Capital and Investment Corporation
(5) Asian Alliance and Investment Corporation
(B8} Pentacapital Investment Corporation
(7} RCBC Capital Corporation
(8) Union Bank of the Philippines
2012 Stock Prices
Period in 2012 Highest Closing Lowest Glosing
1Q 10.94 6.53
2Q 10.50 8.19
3Q 10.78 9.42
4Q 0.45 8.00



The Company's Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the ?h%iipg}iha Stock Dxchangs sinca
2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading date, March 31, 2013, is F9.84.

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of March 31, 2013 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of March 31, 2013 was 10,000 or P100,000.00 at P100.00 per share,

Name of Shareholder MNo. of Sharss Subscribed Parcentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon 3,330 3330
Giiberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 3280
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban 4 04
Manuei ¥. Quiogue 4 04
Jaime C. Laya 1 Ry
Felipe 8. Yalong 1 .01

Total 10,560 106,00

Dividend Informaiion

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be pavabie
at such fimes and in such amounts as the Board of Direclors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Dirgciors
shail determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject o the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capltal of the
Company shail be declared.

i
i

)

In 2012, the Company declared P259 per share cash dividends amounting fo P2.88 millien to
stockholders of record as at May 25, 2012. This was paid on June 8, 2012

The company has no dividend declaration in 2011,

in 2010, the Company declared P300 per share cash dividends amounting to P3 miilion
stockholders of record as at May 28, 2010. This was paid on June 4, 2610,

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or puUrpose excep

t o
to the issuance of the PDRs relating io the underlying Common Shares for as long 25 the PDRe
are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the FDRs recsived by the
Company shall be applied towards iis operating expenses then due for the preceding anu currend
year. A further amount equal fo the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be set aside ©
mest operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in excess of such

requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the cutstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shail receive or become eniftled o receive from the GMA Nstwork, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Snares which consisis of a free distribuiion of Common
Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs o holdears in respect of such distributions.



Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash) in
respect of the Commen Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure delivery of
such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the orger of the PDR
holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There ars no restrictions on the Company's ability o pay dividends on common sguity.
item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of ihe
Company that are incorporated into this Information Statement by reference. Sych Financial
Statemenis have been prepared in accordance with Philinpine CAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the undsrlying GMA
Network, inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Commen Shares received by
the Company {or the Pledge Trusiee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the operating axpensss
then due {inciuding but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and maintenance COsis charged by the
Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating Expenses”) for the current and
preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A further amount equai o the operating
axpenses in the preceding vear (as certified by an independent audiior) (the “Operating Fund"} shail
he set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year, Any amount ir axcass of
the aggregate of the Operating Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such pericd (as cerlified
by the independent auditor of the FDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Moiders pro rats on the first
Business Day after such cash dividends are received by the Company.

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of PC.28 per

5
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, iotaling to P223.87 million o all shareholders of record a3
at August 22, 2012. These were remitied to PDR holders on September 14, 2012

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution {0 POR holders of PU.40 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P344.62 miffion to all sharshoiders of record as
at April 16, 2012. These were remiited to PDR holders on May 2, 2012,

On March 11, 2011, the Company approved cash disiribution ¢ POR holders of P0.45 per share,
relation 1o dividends declared by GMA, totaling to F387.88 million to all sharsholders of record as
Aprit 8, 2011, These were remitted to PDR hoiders an May 6, 2011,

t

[43]

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance Indicators are focused on the dividends it recsives 1o mest
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's cperation.

o



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations of GMA Heldings inc. for the vears ended December 37, 2012 and
2041

The Company posted a pre-iax income of P811 thousand, 16% higher than iast vears F70Z
thousand mainly atiributed to lower operating expenses due (o lower listing fees. Howsver, nst
income after tax decreased o P13 thousand from vear-ago net income of P888 thousand or

acoount of reversal of deferred income tax. On the other hand, revenues continue o deciing
from 21.97 million in 2011 fo P1.81 million due to lower interest income raies this vear in spiis
of P222 thousand exercise fees arising from conversion of 4,451,200 FDRs to common shares
in 2012.

The company distributed P344.82 million or 0,40 per share on May 9, 2012 and P223.87
millior or P0.28 per share on September 14, 2012 in relation 1o dividends recsived from GMA
Network, Inc.

Operaling expenses in 2012 decreasad to P1.10 milllon versus P1.27 million last year as &
direct result of lower listing fess which went down by P138 thousand o PESB0 thousand b b
about by lower market cap.

Einancial Conditicn. Cash in bank and cash eguivaients of B48.06 million decreased
milion due to payment of cash dividends io sinckhoiders of B2.58 million versus none in 2071

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR OUANTITATIVE FACTORS
i rends, demands, commitments, evenis or uncertainties that will have 2 rmaterisd
impact on the issuer's liquidity.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no known trends, demands, commiiments,

avanis of unceriainties that will have a material impact on the issuer's liquidity,

ii. Syents that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or accaleration or an obligation.
Ae of December 31, 2012, there were ne events which may irigger a dirsct or
contingent financiai obligation that is material 1o the Company.

i, Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations  (includin
coniingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidate

sniiies or other persons created during the reporting period.

a
o

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {inciuging
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated

antities or other persons created during the reporiing pericd.

v, Material commitments for capital expendiiures, the general purpese ©
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditurss.

g



ror 2012, there were no material commitments for capital expendiiures.

v, Any known irends, evenis or unceriainties that have had or that are reascnably
expecied foc have 2 maleral favorable or unfavorable impact on net
szles/revenuss/income from continuing operations.

The Company's results of operations depend largely on its abllily o mest PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and o monitor casty and cash
equivaients levels to meet its obligations with respect o the Company's current anc
preceding vear's operation. There are no known frends, svenis or unceriainiies that
are reasonably expecied {o have a2 material favorable or unfavorable impact on nst
sales/revenues/income from continuing cperations.

£

i, Significani elemenis of income or loss that did nol arise from the Company
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no significant slemenis of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer's confinuing operaiions,

ik Causes for Material Changes In the Financial Siatementis

Balance Shest (December 31, 2012 vs, December 31, 2010}

e Cash in bank and cash squivalents of P48.08 million decreased by F2 millior
due to payment of cash dividends to steckhoiders of P2.58 million versus none in
2011

s Accounis payable and accrued expenses of P483 thousand increased by
2481 thousand due to unbilled professional fees for corporale heusekesping.

viil, Seasonal aspects that had @ material effect on the financlal condition or results of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or resulis of operations.

ftem 7. Financial Statementis

The Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with SRC Rule 88, as amenaed is

attached herelo as Annex “A”.

itern 8. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Since 2007, SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. has served as the indspendent audilors of the
Company to audit the Company's financial statements. The Company has not had any material
disagreemenis on accounting matiters or financial disclosure matters with SyCip Gorres Velayo
& Co.



AUDIT AND AUDIT RELATED FEES

The Company engaged SyCip Gorres Velayo @ Co. {8GV) as the independent auditors 1o
audit the annual financial statements in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and
express its opinion on these financial statements as g whole as well as on the Supplemenial
Schedules Required by Annex 88-E included in Form 17-A in compiiance with Securities
Regulation Code Ruie 88, As Amended (2011). The Company paid SGY an audit fes of
Seventy-Five Thousand Pesos (P75,000) for year 2012 which is the same fee with year 2011,
The Company has not engaged SGV for tax accounting, compliance, acdvice, planning and any
other form of tax services during the vears 2012 and 2014 that are reascnably related o the
performance of the audit or review of the Company's financial statements.

TAX FEES

The Cornpany has not engaged SGV for tax accounting, compliance, advice planning and any
other form of tax services during the years 2012 and 201

ALL OTHER FEES

The Company has not engaged 3GV for products and services other than he SEIVICEs
described under “Audit and Audit Related Fees” above.

SART Hl - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION IMFORMATION
em 0. Directors and Execuiive Officers of the issuer

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Arficles of Incorporation of the Company, the 2oard of Dirsctors of the Comps
comprises five directors, two of whom is independent. The direciors have a ierm of ane ve
and are elecied annually at the Company's siockholders mesting. A director who was slected !
fill a vacancy hoids the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. Az of April 1
2043 the Company's Board of Directors and Senior Management wers composed of th
following:

s
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G

e

o

Board of Directors Senior Management |
Year Yaar !
i i . . s Position ia Ponition
Dirctors and Senior Mationality Position osmio Positien " S Age
Management was WES
Asgumsd Asgumed
" . o Chairman/ -~ ;
i [ : N7 7
Felipe L. Gozon liginc Pirector 2007 MN/& N/ 3
Gitbario R, Duavit, Jr. Filipino Director 2007 President/Chief Executive Gificer 2007 49
Jog! Marcelo G. Jimenez Fiipino Director 2007 NiA I A 48




‘ Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Fellpe S. Yalong Fiiiping Corporate Treasurer 2007 Spe_rating Cfficer 2012 58
Artgmio V. Panganibén Filipino independent Director 2009 N MR 78
Jaime C. Lava Filiping Independent Direcior 2008 NIA MIA 74
Ronaido P, Mastril Fiipina | N/A NiA g?fz-e"f'““e” p— 2607 47
Anna Teresa . Gozon-Abrogar Filiping ’;‘Zi;zgi; Corporate 2007 NIA N 41

officers and senior management

Felipe L. Gozon

Felipe L. Gozon, Fiiipino, 73 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Exgcutive
Officer of GMA Network, inc.

Atly Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion & Lucila. Aside from
GMA Network, Inc., he is aiso Chairman and CEO of GMA Markefing and Productions, inc. and GMA New
Media, Inc.. Chairman and President of FLG Management and Development Corp.; Chairman of Alia
Productions Group, inc.. Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., Moni-Aire Really and
Development Corp. Philippine Entertainment Portal, Inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of
Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank; Director of, among other companies, Gozon Development Lord.,
Justitia Reailty and Management Corp., Antipoio Agri-Business and Land Development Corp.., Sagitlarius
Condominium Corp. and President of Lex Realty, Inc. He serves as Chairman of the Soard of Trustees of
GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, inc., and The Patter and Clay Christian
School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation; and Trustse of Bantayog ng mga
Bayani Foundation.

Aity. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service, and
nusiness, inciuding the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Juslice of tha
Philippines {1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association {1990 & 1983},
CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine {2004), Master Entrepreneur — Philippines {2004) by kmnst anc
Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and Business Management by the Kalipunan ag
Samanan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of the Year by People Asia Magazine (2008) and
ifetime Achievement Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012). He is also lsted among Biz
News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010). Gozon was also selected as & member of the Advisory Board for
the 2010 Asian Television Awards (ATASL

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Ehilippines (among the first 10
of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He was admitted o the Bar
in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Filiping, 49 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of the GMA Network, Inc. e has been
2 Director of GMA Network, inc. since 1899 and is currently the Chairman of the Network's Exscutive
Commitiee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the Chairman of the Board of GMA Netwark Fiims, ing,
and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and Vice Chairman of the Board of GMA Marketing and Preductions, Inc. He

4
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also serves as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, inc., Scenarics, Inc., RGMA Markeling and
Productions, Inc., Siim Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and investments, ing. e is the President
and a Director of Group Management and Development, Inc. Srasident and Director of MediaMerge
Corp., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Direcior of RGMA Networi, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Monte-Aire Realty and Development
Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc., President of

Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. (formerly LEAF) and is a Trusiee of the HERQ Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from  the University of the Phillppines.

Josl G, Jimenez

Filiping, 49 years old, has been a Director of the GMA Network, Inc. since 2002. He is currently the Senior
Vice President of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., and ithe Chisf Executive Cfficer of Alla
Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, inc., Scenarios, inc., and
GMA Worldwide, inc., besides also being a member of the Board of Directors of Maiayan Savings and
Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc. He is alsc a Direcior of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-esiate
development company. Hels a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc.

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where ne obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Susiness
Adminisiration from Loyocla Marymount University. He also obigined a Master's Degree in Management
from the Asian Institute of Management.

Felipe 8. Yalong

Filipine, 56 years old, is the Sxecuiive Vice President and Head of the Corporaie Sarvices Group of GMA
Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from GhA Network, inc., he also
serves as Corporaie Treasurer of GMA Holdings, inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Nemwork Films, inc,
Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, Inc., and GMA Marketing anc Productons,
inc.: Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, inc., Mediamerge Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA
Marketing and Productions, inc.; and Corporate Treasurer of the Saard of Trustess of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, inc.

e obtained a Bachelor of Science degres in nusiness Administration Major i Accounting from thz
Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Deveiopment Program &t
the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Ceriified Public Accountant.

Jaime C. Laya

Filiping, 73 years old, has been an independent Direcior of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007, e
is the Chairman of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank), Direclor of Philippine Ratings
Services Corporation, Victorias Milling Company, inc., Philippine AXA Life insurance Company,
inc., Ayala Land, Inc., and Manila Pole Club, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberio
Ty Foundation, Inc., CIRl Foundation, Inc., and Dual Tech Eeundation, Inc. Trustes of De g
Salie University — Taft, St Paul University-Guezon City, Cultural Center of the Philippines,
Metropoiitan Museum of Maniia, Yuchengeo Museum and Fundacién Santiago, inc.

Me was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981, Minister of Education, Culture and Sporis, 1084-88;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines. 1881-1884,
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of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1878 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1868-1974. In 1886, he founded J.C. Lava & Co., Lid. (Ceriified Public
Accountanis and Management Consuliants} later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
international; he served as the firm’s Chairman until his retirament in 2004,

Chairman, Nationai Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was facully member

He sarned his BSBA, magna curm laude, University of the Fhilippines, 1857; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia institute of Technology, 1981; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanforg
University, 1966. He is a Certified Fublic Accountant.

Artemic V. Panganiban

Filipine, 75 years oid, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007, In
1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court and in 2005, he was aopointed Chief
Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until December 2006. At present, he Is alse an
independent Director of these listed firms: First Philippine Holdings Corp., Meiro Pacific
invesiments Corp., Manila Eleclric Company, mobinsons Land Corp., GMA Hoidings, Inc.
Metro Pacific Tollways Corp., Petron Corporation, Bank of ihe Philippine islands, and Asian
Terminals. He has been a regular director of Joliibes Foods Corporation since 2012, He is alsc
a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Independent Adviser of Philippine Long Distance
Telephone Co., Chairman, Roard of Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Chairman of the Beard
of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, inc., and Member, Adviscry Board of the Worid Bank

and of the Asian Instifute of Management Governance Council. He also is a column writer of
The Philippine Daily inguirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Asscciale
Justices of the Supreme Court as the "Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his roie as a jurist, lawyer, Svic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been fhe recipient
of aver 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associalions, bar
groups, religicus movements and other non-government organizations, both local and
international.

e obtained his Associate in Arts, "With Highest Honors” and later his Bacheior of Laws, oum
iaude and “Most Ouistanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed sixih
among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar axaminations. He is fkewise the
recipient of several honorary docioral degrees from various universities.

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar

Filipino, 41 years old, has been a Director of the GMA Network, Inc. since 2000, Atty. Anna Taresa W

Gozon-Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at Colegic San Agustin, 3
graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila University and obtained he
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippinas where she graduated valediciorian, cum

laude. She jater  obtained her Master of Laws from Harvard Liniversity.

& =
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She is & junior partner in Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate Professor in ihe
University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consuttant o the Chairman/CEC of GMA Network, énc._an{i the Preszicent
of GMA Eiims, inc. and GMA Worldwide, inc. Sheis a rustee of GMA Kapuso Foundalion.

e
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RONALDO P, MASTRIL!

Filipino, 47 years old, obtained a Bachelor of Sclence and Economice degree, major in
Accounting from De La Salle University He attended Master in Business Adminisiration
Program from the same university and completed the Exscuiive Development Program of the
Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant with expertiss In flelc
accounting, auditing, finance and taxaticn. He was formely the Assistant Vice President of
Controllership of ABS-CBN and also served as the Group Internal Auditor befera loining GMA
Network, Inc. He also worked with SGV & CO. in the early part of his career. He is currently the
Vice President for Finance of GMA Network, Inc.

4]

Significant Emplovess

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individuat and collective contributions of their

executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particuiar armployes.

Familv Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon's sigter,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marceic G. Jimenez.

involvement in Ceriain Legal Procesdings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years up fo the latest date, thers
has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are material ‘o an evaiuation of
the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer,
or control person of the Company:

such person was a general pariner or executive officer, either at the time of the
insolvency or within two vears prior to that time;

» Any filing of an insolvency or bankrupicy petition by or against any business of which
T ik

s Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal procesding, demestic or foreign, of any such persen, excluding traflic
violations and other minor offenses;

s Any final and execuiory order, judgment, or decrse of any coun of compeient
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or tsmporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, of otnerwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking ‘activities; and

e
[



« Any final and executory judgment of any such person by & domestic or forsign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparabie forgign body, or &
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketolace or self-regulatory organizaiion,
for viciation of a securities or commodiiies law.

tem 10. Executive Compensation

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each direcior is entiled to a reasonable per diem
aliowance for aitendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate 2n armount of not more than 10% of the nat
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such cormnpensation
shall be determined and apportioned among ihe directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject io the approval of the stockholders representing at least & majority of the
stockholders.

em 11, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

As of March 31, 2013, the foliowing perscns awned at least 5% of the Campany’s outstanding
common shares:

Title of class,  Mame, Address of Record } Name of | Citizenship | Neo.of | Percentage
Owher and Relationship with | Beneficial . Shares  of Class
Company | Owner and | Held
| Relationship ‘
i with Record | ] ,
B ' Dwner | %
Common  |Felipe L. Gozon " Record | Flipine | 23301 33.30
Unit 5 8D Tower One, One
McKiniey Place, New } ‘
Ronifacio City, Fort Bonifacio, . '
Taguig City ’ :
Commen  Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Record Filipine | 3,330 33.30
Unit 8 5D Tower One, One | !
MeKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City, Fort Bonifacio,
| Taguig City | 1
‘Common  |Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez | Record Fiipino | 3,330 33.30
| {Unit 5 50 Tower One, One | 1 | !
; McKinley Place, New %
l \zonifacio City, Fort Bonifacio, | ' '
‘, ‘Tac::uég City | ‘ .
L | Toall 9980, 98.80]

The foilowing is the security ownership of the directors and executive officers of the Company
as of the same date:



Title of Name of Beneficial | Amount and Nature of Citizenship |Perceniags
Class Owner Beneficial Ownership of Clags
Common  Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino :‘;:’30
3,330 - :
Common  |Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr, Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common  Joel Marcelo G Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common  |Felipe 8. Yalong Direct Filiping Roy
1
Common  Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino 01
1
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipine 04
4
Total \ 9,996 99.96
Voting Trust

The Company is unaware of the existence of any voting trust or similar agreement.

Change in Controi

There are no existing provisions in the Articles of Incorporation or the By-Laws of the Gompany
which will delay, defer or in any manner prevent a change in control of the Company. Thers
have been no arrangements which have resulted in a change in controf of the Company during
the period covered by this repori.

Hem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company engaged as its legal counsel the Law Firm Bele Gozon Elma Parsi Asuncion &
Lucila {"BGEPFAL") where Atly. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Pariner. Atty. Gozon is ths

Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company.

On July 30, 2007, the Company ssued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Commoen Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (*Seliing Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company's [nitial
Bublic Offering were initially held by the Company then remiited to these Selling Shareholdars.
Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material fransactions during the past o
years, nor is any material transaction presently propused betwsen the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the pariies o negotiate terms
of material fransactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties o
an arm'’s length basis.
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

tem 14. Exhibits and Reports on $EC Form 17-C

{a) Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

For the past months, the Company has filed the following SEC Form 17-C reports:

Subject of 17-C Nate Fied

Results of Board Meeting: ASM date and Record Date, Payment date
for PDR Holders in relation to the Cash Dividends declared by GMA
March 28, 2012

Results of Annual Stockhelders’ Mesting and
Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors May 25, 2012

Computation of Cash Distribution for PDR Holders May 7,

Record and Cash Distribution Date in relation o the
Special Cash Dividends declared by GMA August 1, 2012

Report on Compliance with SEC Memorandum re: guidslines
sor the assessment of the performance of Audit Commifiees October 2, 2012

Rescheduling of Beard of Director's meeting i November 8, 2012 re:
approval of Audit Committee Charter Celober 23, 2042

M - Results of Board of Directors’ meeting November 8, 2012



SIGMATURES

Pureuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation

Code, this report is signed on behaif of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of mansti il ¥ on

By:

RONALDO P. MASTRILY
Comptroller/ Principal Accounting Officer

///W% - ?f?fw”fﬂ T

ANNA-TERESA M. GCZON- AER@@%R
Corporate Secretary

& n ADn arAn
L OATA :
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2013 affiant(s}
axhibiting to me his/their Passport Numbers, a8 follows:
NAMES Passport No. Date of issue Place of issue
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. EAQQ20704 Feb. 15, 2010 DFA, Manila
Felipe S. Yalong KK1282901 May 27, 2008 DF A, Manila
Ronaldo P. Mastrili EAD020825 January 6, 2010 DFA, Manile

Anna-Teresa M. Gozon- AX17628184 August 8, 2008 DFA, Manila
Abrogar
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 21, 2013

- Securifies and Exchange Cormmission
SEC Building, EDSA Graenhilis
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

The management of GMA Network, Ing. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2071, including the
additional components attached therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporling Standards.
This responsibility includes designing and implementing intemal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material missiztement,
whether due tp fraud or error, selecting and applying approprigle accounting policies, and rnaking
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the croumstances,

The Board of Direciors reviews and spproves the consolidated financial statements and submits the
same to the siockholders.

Sycip Gorres Velaye & Co., the independent guditors, appointed by the stockholders has examinss
the consclidated financial s‘zateme*ﬁs of the Company in accordgance with Phxlupum Stendards on
Auditing, and in s report to the stockholders, has expressed Hs opinion on the {zimmass of
presentation upon completion of such examination.
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Chief Financial BECer e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

BURBAL OF INTERNAL ZEVENLE

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors LARGE TAorPATERS BERVICE e
GMA Hoidings, Inc., ety
Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Flace Date; AFR 10 700 . DS
MNew Bonifacio Global City A}{;r FE A
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City RECEIVE E}j

Report on the Financial Siatements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of GMA Heldings, Ine., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 30172 and 2011, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of vash fows for zach of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2612, and a summary of significant scoounting policies
and other axplanatory information.

Manngement's Responsibility for the F inancici Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, acd for such internat contral a5
management determines is necessary @0 enable the preparation of financial statsments shat are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these financial statements bassd on opr audits. We
sonducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the auditto cbiain reasonable
assurance about whather the financial stalements ars free from material misstatemant,

An zudit involves performing procedurss to obtain audit svidence about the amounis end disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemert of the financial staternents, whether dus 10 fraud ar
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 1o the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financiai statements in arder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An andit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of socounting
policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting estimates made by management, as well a3

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We beligve that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to nrovide a basis for
gur audit opinion.



Cpinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial position
of GMA Floldings, Ing. a5 af December 31, 2012 and 2011, and its financial performance and its cash

ik
flows for sach of the thres vears in the period ended December 31, 2012 in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Reguired Under Revenue Regulations 18-2011
and 15-2010

Cur audits were condusted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial siatements
taken =5 2 whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 18-3011

and 15-2010 in Note 15 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue and is not a reguired part of the basic financial statements, Such information is
the responsibility of the - management of GMA Heldings, Inc. The information has been subjested o
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements, In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial stalermenis taien
as whaole,

SYCIP GORREE VELAYO & CO.

J
T Raryeesey
Clairma T. Mangangey
Partner
CPA Certificate Mo, 86858
SEC Accreditation Mo, §770-AR-1 {Group A},
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1, 2013
Tax Identification Mo, 129-434-867
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998.67.2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2013
FTR Mo, 36569697, January 2, 2013, Makati City

March 21, 2013
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N AR
DecembeR 5l
20132 , 2011
b
il
ABSETS L
W
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (MNotes 6, 12 and 13} B48.061,.533 =250,089,007
Accounts receivable (Notes 12 and 13} 283,432 204,338
Prepaid tax 102,166 43,263
Total Carrent Assels 48,424,091 30,306,500
Moncurrent Asset
Deferred tax assets {(MNote 10) - 436,289
R4 424 0303 RE;,762 508
LIABILITINS AND EQUETY
Current Liabilities
Accounis payable and other current Liabilities
(Motes 7, 12 and 13} B483,4073 BZ41,032
Dus to shareholders (Notes 11, 12 and 133 47,271.600 47,271,600
Total Corrent Liabiiities 47,754,673 47 512,832
Eguity
Capital stock 106,000 100,000
Reatained sarnings (Noie §) 250,418 3,150,276
Total Eguity 669,418 3,280,276
B48 424,081 830,762,508

See goeompanying Notes to Financiol Statements.

BUREAY OF INTERNAL REVENLE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERYICE
LARGE TAXSAYERS A&%s'sf.wafra DIVISION |

I
Date; APR 10'2013 :SDS

{

i‘n E...z %‘: E % 2’? g.;: ;.Ei
EREWIN L. TELAN




GhiA HOLDINGS, INC,
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Lnded Docember 21

2812 2011 2410
BEVENUE
Interest income (Note 6} 27 886,755 £1,968.22] 2,681,564
Exercise fess (Mote 3} 222,560 - 1,083,050
1.909,355 1,268,591 3,764,514
EXPENSES
Operating expenses {Note §) 1,897,584 1,266,383 1,284,566
Interest expense and bank charges —~ 380 182
1,807,954 1,266,585 265,143
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAY 311,401 701,858 2,485,456
PROVISION ¥FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME
TaX (Nete 13
Current 343 963 383.71% 257873
Deferred 456,208 {380,000 {76,280%
798,262 13,706 481682
NET INCOME 13,138 588,187 2017783
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 213,139 BARE, 187 82017783
Basic/Diluted Baraings Per Share (Nowe 14 21.3 258,57 220178

See accompanying Notes to Fingneial Stalements.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
LARGE TAXPAVERS ARGISTANCE MIVISHON ¢
Date| APR 19 203 | SDS

v

i
i

BECEIVED
EREWIN L. TRLARN




GHMA HOLDINGS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Retninesd

Capiial Earnings Total

Ftock {MNots &) Rouity

Balances at January 1, 2012 21006.000 P3,154.276 83,250,278

Total comprehensive income - 13,132 13,138
Cash dividends - R259 1 shars - (2,593,997} (7,393,507
Balanoees atf December 31, 2012 210,000 B569,418 BEGS,A1E

Relances at January 1, 2011 2100000 B2 452 DED B2 562,089

Total comprehensive income - 688,187 488,187

Balancss at December 31, 2011 2100,600 B3,150,276 £3,250,274
Baiances at January 1, 2010 R100,060 B3 444,306 7,544,308

Total comprehensive income - 2,017,783 2,0V7183
Cash dividends - 2300 a shars - {3,000,000% {3,000,000)

Ralances af December 31, 2010 £100,000 87 462,088 2D 567,080

See aecompanying Notes (o Finanelal Sialements.




GMA BOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Bended December 21

2012 2011 2010

CASH PLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax PR11.401 B7G1,898 27 490 466
Adiustments for

Interest incoms {(Mots §} {1,886,795} {1,568,551 {2,681,3564}

Imterest sxpense and bank charpes - 300 182
Operating loss before working capiial changes (878,384 (1,266,383 {181,216
Decreases {increases) in:

Accounts receivable {26,260) {125,060} 11,230

Prepeid tax {65,343 (30,428) 12,834y
Inereases {decreases) in:

Accounts payable and other current labiiities 245041 (27,589,100 27474350

Due to shargholders - ~ {24095 8273
MNet eash flows used in opersiions (798,756y  (29,021,924) (6,804,268
Intersst recaived 1,734 282 1,984 853 2,865,563
Income taxes paid (341,963)  (39L,718) (601,654
Interest paid - (300} {182)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 596,543 {37 431,045, {4,340,139)
CASE FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment of cash dividends (Note 8} {2,383 597) - 3,200,000
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

LOUIVALENTS (1,997,454) (27,431,045} (7,540,139
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YRAR 20,059,007 77,494,456 85,030,183
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YIAR 248,861,553 B50,059,007 B77.490.056

See nooompanying Notas to Financiol Stetemenis,




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ooy

Corporaiz Ieformation

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquirs and own, hold, uze, ssll, assign, transfer, morigage, pledgs. sxchangz or
otherwise dispose real and personal prapesty of svery kind and description. The registsred offics
address of the Company 1s Unit 5D Tower One, One Mol mlsy Place, Mow Bonifacio Global City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 13, 2006, )

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA MNetwarl,
Inc. {GMA), an affiliale,

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipis (PDRs), which were listed and traded in
the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE) (ses Note 5).

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the
izsnance of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and
holding of the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PIIRs issued. This includss
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person
for as long as the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations ars
adequately presenied in the staterments of comprehensive income.

The ascompenying financial statsments of the Company were approved and authorized for
issuancs in aceordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 21

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in Acconniing Policies and Disclosures

Basis pf Preparation
The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in sooordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS}.

The socompanying financial statements of the Csmpany have heen prepared on a historical cost
basis and are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency under FFRS. All values ars rounded to the nearest Philippine peso, except when
otherwise indicated.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accouniing policies adopted are consistent with those of the previcus financial vear, sxcept for
the following amended PFRS and PAS which were adepted starting Janugry 1, 2012

s PFRS 7, Financial Fstrumerds: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assels {Amendment},
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July [, 2011,

e PAS 12, Jncome Taxes - Deferred Ton: Recovery of Underlying Assels { Amendment},
effsctive for apnual perinds beginning January 1. 2012.



The changes introduced by such amendments and improvemens are a5 follows:

o PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assels {Amendment), the
amendments require additiona! disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but
not derscognized to enable the user of the Company’s financial statements io understand 4
relationship betwsen the asssis that have not been derecognized and their associated liabiliu

In addition, the amendments require disclosures about continuing invelvement in

mvrecogmzwd assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the

entify’s continuing invelvernent in those derscopnized assets,

s PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendmant), the
amendments clarified the determination of deferred income tax on invesgnent property
gasured at Tair value, The amendments introduced & rebuttable presummmzt that deferr

income tax on invesiment property measured using the fair value modsi in ?A.h g, g!?‘ifﬁ.ﬂ‘l‘??‘*@?’if
Properiy, should he determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered thr cugh

sale. Furthermore, the amendment introduces the requ*ameﬂ that deferred %vxzama 2y on
depreciabie assets measured the revaluation model in PAS 16, Propersy, Plani ard Equipment,
always be measured on a sale basis of the asset,

The adoption of the above amendments to PFRS and PAS did net have a significant impact o0 the
financial statements.

Future Chanzes in_Accounting Policies

The Company did not early adopt the following standards and Philippine Iterpretations that have
been approved but are not yet sffective. The Company intends to adopt these standards when
these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption
of these revised standards, interpretations and amendmenis to PFRS to have 2 significant impact
on its financial statements.

Effective in 20132

s PFRE 7, Financial Instruments: Disciosures - Gffseiting Financial Assals and Financial

Lighilitizs, hecomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 The
amendments require an entity to disclese information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral agresments). The new disclosures ars "eq,.n ¢ for ail
recagnized financial instruments that are offset in accordancs with PAS 32, Finaneial
Tnstrumenis: Presentoiion. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial iﬂstrtsmanﬁ
that are subject to an snforceable master netting arrangement or “similar agregment”,
irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32, The amendments reguire
entities 1o disciose, in a tabular format uniess another format i ls maore aprﬁmﬁmze, the
following minimum quantitative information. This is presente d separately for financial assets
and fnancial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:

2. The gross amounis of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial labilities;
b. The amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteriz in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounis presented in the statement of financial position;

The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;

[e]




d, The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included m (1) above, including: A
i) Armounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not mest some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 37; and
. ) Amounts related 1o financial collateral {including cash collateral}; anc
e. The nst amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amouns in {c} above.

The amsndments to PFRS 7 ars to be applied retrospectively. The amendment affects
disclosures only and has no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

PERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, becomes sffective for annual pericds beginning
on or after January 1, 2013, PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidaied and
Separmie Financial Siatements, that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
staternents. It also includes the issnes reised in Philippine Interpretation Standing
Interpretations Commities (SIC)12, Conselidoiion ~ Special Purpose Farities. PFRE1E
sstablishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose gntities.
The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will requirs management © exercise significant judgment
i determine which entities are conirolled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated bva
parent, compared with the requiremenis that were in PAS 27.

PERS 11, Joint Arrangements replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and Philippine
Interpretation SIC 13, Jointly Cantrolled Entities — Non-maonetary Comfributions iy Venlurers,
hecome effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2013, The new standard
focuses on the naturs of the rights and obligations arising from the arrangement. [t removes
the option to account for jointly controlied entities {}CEs) using proportionate consolidation.
Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venwre must be accounted for using the squity
method.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of fmieresis in Other Entities, besomss effective for annual pericds
beginning on or afier Janvary 1, 2013. Thiz standard includes s}l of the disclosures that wers
preavicusly in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the
disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and PAS 28, Invesmments in Associales.
“hese disclosures relate 1o an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, assopiates
and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also requirad.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, becomes effective Tor annual periods beginning on or
afrer January 1, 2013, This standard sstablishes a single scurce of guidance under PERS for
all fuir valus measurements. PFRS 13 doss not change when an entity (s required o use Tair
value, but rather provides guidance on how fo measure fair value under PFRE when fair value
is required or permitted. This standard should be applied prospectively as of the beginning of
the annual period in which it is initially applied. lis disciosure requirements nesd not be
applied in comparative information provided for periods befors initial appiication of PFFRE 12,

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised), becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013, Amendments t¢ PAS 1% rangs fram fundamental changes such a8
removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expscted returns on plan asseis 1o simple
clanfications and rewording. The revised standard also requirss new disciosurss such as,
zmong others, a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, information on
asset-liability matching strategies, duration of the defined benefit cbligation, and
disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk.




o PAS 27, Separate Financial Statemenis (as revised in 2011), becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. As a consequence of the new PFRE 10 and
PFRS 12, what remains of PAS 27 is limitad 0 accounting for subsidiaries, jaintly controlled
gntities, and associates in separats financial statements,

s PAS IR, Imvestments in Associates and Joint Veniures {as revised in 2011}, becomes effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, As a conssquence of the new
PFRS 11 and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associaies and
Joini Verures, and describes the appiication of the sguity method to investments In joint

vertures in addition o associates,

»  PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presemation of Hems of Other Comprehensive
ncome (OC), becomes effective for annual perieds beginning on or afier fuly 1. 2012, Ths
amendments toc PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCL liems that could be
reciassified {or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) would be presentsd separatsly from iterns that will never be
reciassified.

s Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Siripping Costs in the Production Phase of o Sufoce
Adine, becomes effective for annual perieds beginning on or after January 1, 201 3. This
interprotation applies to waste removal costs {“siripping costs™) that ars incurred in surfacs
mining activity during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”), fihe
henefit from the siripping activity will be realized in the currsnt period, an entity is reguired iv
aceount for the stripping activity costs ag part of the cost of inventory, When the benefit is the
improved access to ore, the entify should recognize these cosisasa non-current agsst, only i
certain criterta are mei (“stripping activity asset™). The siripping activity asset is aooounied
for as an addition to, or as an enhancement of, an existing asset. After initial recognition, the
stripping activity asset is carried at is cost or revalusd amount less depraciation or
amortization and less impairment losses, in the same way a5 the sxisting asset ofwhichitisa
part.

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2009-2011 cycle). The Annual Improvements to FFRE {2009-
2011 cyele) contain nop-urgent bul necessary amendments to PFRS, The amendmenis are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and are applied refrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The Company will adopt thess improvemenis fo PFRE when
these becoms effective.

s PFRS 1, Firsi-time ddoption gf PFRS, clarifies that an entify that has stopped appiying PFRS
may chooss to either: (2) re-apply PFRS 1, even if the entity applied PFRS 1 in 2 previous
reporting period; or (b} apply PFRS retrospectively in accardance with PAR &, decomnting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, in order 1o resume reporting under
PERS. T also clarifies that upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized horrowing cosis
in sccordancs with its previous generally accepted accounting principles may cerryforward,
without adjustment, the amount previously capitaiized in its opening statement of financial
position at the date of transition. Such borrowing costs are then recognized in accordance:
with PAS 23, Borrawing Costs. The amendment will have no Impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance, '

& PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of the Reguirements jor
Comparative Information, requires an entity to present a: (2) comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the minimum rsquired comparative period; and (b) opening statement pf financial




position when an entity changes its accounting policies, makes retrospeciive restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has & material effect on the statement of financiz!
position. The opening statement will be at the beginning of the preceding pericd. The
amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

o PAS 16, Property, Plant omd Eguipmeni — Classification of Servicing Eguipment, clarifies that
major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definfton of property and sguipment
are not inventory. The amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance.

»  PAS 32, Financiol Instruments: Presentation — Tax Effect of Distribution fo Holders of Sguity
Fnstruments, removes existing income tax requirements from PAS 32 and requires entities to
apply requirements in PAS 12, frcome Toxes, 10 any income tax arising from distributions 1o
squity holders, The amendment will have no impact on the Company’s financial pusition or
performance.

s PAS 34, Interim Finanoial Reporting and Segment Information for Tolal Assets and
Liahilities, clarifies that the requirements in FAS 34 relating to segment information for total
assets and labilities for each reportable segment to enhance consistency with the raguirsment
in PFRE 8, Operating Segments. The amendment wiil have no fmpact on the Company’s
financial position or performance

Effective in 2014

s PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements — Investrent Entiites {Amendmsnt), becomes
sffective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, The amendment reguires &
parent that is an investment entity to measure its invesiments in particular subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss instead of consolidating them, New disclogure requiramernts
relating to investment entities were added in PFRS 12 and PAS 27. The amenament wiil have
no impast on the Company’s financial position or performance.

s PERS 12, Disclosures of fnterests in Cther Entities — Invesiment Eavities (Amendment),
becomss effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, The amendments
require a parent that is an invesoment entity 1o disclose information about significant
judgements and assumptions made in deftermining that it is an investment sniity, as well 28 and
any changes thereto, A parent that is an investment entify is alse requirad to disclose ceriain
information an unconsolidated subsidiaries, which are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss, The amendment will have no impact on the Company’s financial position ar
performance.

s PAS 3%, Separate Financial Siolements — fvesiment Ensities, hecomes affsctive for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 ‘The amendments require a parent that is an
investment entity and does not consolidate its subsidiaries in acoordance with the exceptions
of PERS 10, to present a separate financial statement as its only financial statemesnt. The
amendmment will have no impact on the Company’s financial position or perfarmance.

o PAS 32, Financial Instrirments. Presentotion — Offsetting Financial Asseis amid Fingneicl
Lighilities (Amendments), The amendments to PAS 32 are 10 be applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, These amendments to PAE 32 slarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right o offset” and also olarify the
application of the PAS 32 offsetiing criteria to settlement systems {such as central clearing

house systems) which apoly gross settlement mechanisms that ars not simultanzous. While
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the amendment is expecied not to have any impact on the net assets of the Company, any
changes in offsetting is expected o impact leverage ratios and regulatory capital requiramanis.

Effective in 2815

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments; Classification and IMeasurement, becomes gifective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, PFRE 9 reflscts the first phase of the work on the
replacement of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognilion and Measurement. Work on
impairment of financtal instruments and hedge accounting is still ongoing, with 2 visw to
replacing PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fafr vaius
at initial recognition, A debt financiel asset may, if the fair vaive option (FVU) iz not invoked, be
subssquently measured af amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective
1 hold the assets to sollect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on
specified dates, to cash flaws that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding, All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair valus through profit or
loss. All equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through other comprehensive
income (OCT) or profit or loss. Equity financia! assets held for rading must be measured at fair
value through profit or loss. For FVO ligbilities, the amount of change in the fair value of 2
liability that is attributable to changes in eredit risk must be pressnted in OCIL The remainder of
the change in Tair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the Tair value chang
in respect of the lHability’s cradit risk in OCI wauld create or enlarge an sccounting mismateh in
profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities have been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation
ruies and the criteria for using the FVQ.

The Company does not expect these changes and amendments ¢ have a material impact on 13

Snancial statements. Additional disclosures which may be required by these amsndments will be
included in the Company’s financial statements when these amendments are adopied.

tad

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivaients
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits with
maturities of thres {3) months or less.

Financial Assels

Initial Recognition and Measuremeni. Financial assets within the scope of PAS 29 are classified
as Financial asssts at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), loans and rec tyables, held-io-
maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sals (AFS) financial assets, or a3 derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company detsrmines
the classification of i financial assets af initial recognition.

411 financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, exespt in the cass of
financial assets recorded at FVPL.

Purchases or sales of fnancial assets that require delivery of assefs within a time frame established
by regulation or canvention in the market place {reguiar way trades) are recognized on the frade
date, i.e., the daie that the Company commits 1o purchass or seil the asset.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and acoounts receivable.




As at Decernber 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company does not have any financial asset at FVPL,
HTM investments, AFE financial assets and derivatives designated as hedging mstrumenis.

“"Day 17" Profit or Loss. Where the transaction price is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valnation technioue
whosg variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the differsnce
between the transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments {a “Day 17 profit or los s}
in profit or loss uniess it Quahf” les or recognition as some other type of assel. In cases where :7;
which Is not observable is used, the difference between the trensaction price and model valus is
only recognizad in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the “Day 1™ profit or loss amount.

Subsequent Measuremeni, Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, After initlal measurement, such
financinl agsets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
lgss impairment. Amortized cost is caleulated by faking into acoount any discount or premium an
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the affective interest rate. The sffective
inferest amortization iz inchuded in %n‘tsrasi income in profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in profit or ioss in interest expense for losns.and in other operating
expenses for revsivables.

s

Derecognition of Financial Assers, A financial asset {or, where applicable, a pert of & financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derscognized when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e The Company has transferred its rights to recetve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without matarial delay to 2 'é:hzm party undsr a
“pass-through”™ arrangement; or

=  Either {8} the Company hes transferred substantially all the risis and rewards of the =s=et, or
{b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred iis rights to receive cash flows from an assst or hes sntersd
intoa pasn»t hrough arrangement, it eveluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transterred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the sxtent of
the Company’s continuing involvement in the assst. In that case, the Company aiso recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated linbility are measursd on 2 basis that
reflects the righis and obligations that the Company has refainsd,

Continuing mvolvement that takes the form of & guarantee over the transferrsd assel is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Company assesses, at sach reporting period, whether thers &
any cbiective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
agset or 8 group of financial assets is deemed to be tm}}asﬁsé if, and only if, there is objeative
svidence of impairment as a result of one or mors events that has ocemred after the infgal
recognition of the asset (en incurred “loss event™) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the fmancial assat or the group of financial assets that can be
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reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may includa indications that the debtors or 8 group.of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, defauit or delinguency in inferest or
principal pavments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial -
reorganization and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease inthe
astimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrsars or sconomic conditions that sorrelate with
defaults,

Financial Assets Carrvied af Amoriized Cost, For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the
Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment sxists individually for financial
assets that are individuaily significant, or callsctively for financial assets that ars not madividually
significant, Ifthe Company determines thaf no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, i ingludes the asset in a group of
fnancial essets with similar oredit risk characteristics and collsctively assesses them for
impairment. Financial assets that are individually assessed Tor impairment and for which an
impairment joss is, o continues i be, recognized are not included ina oollestive assessment of
impairment. If there is objective svidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amouns
of the loss is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expscted credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated futurs cash flows is discounted af the
financial asset’s ariginal effective interestrate. [fa loan Has a variable imerest rais, the distount
vate for messuring any impairment loss is the current effsctive intersst rate.

The carrying amount of the assst is reduced through the use of an aliowanee scoount and the
amount of the loss is recognized in profit ar less. Intersst incoms gontinues to be acorued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used fo discount the future sash
fiows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
interest income in profit or ioss, Loans together with the associated allowanoe are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recavery and ail coliateral has besn realized or has
besn transferred to the Company, If, in a subsequent vear, the amount of the sstimated
impairment loss increases of decreases besause of an svent ocowring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased of reduced by adiusting the
afiowancs account, If a future write-off is later recoverad, the recovery is oredited to interest
expense in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

-

TIniricl Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 35 are
clessified as Fnancial liabilities at FYPL, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determings the
ciassification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

All financial Habilities are recognized initiaily at frir value plus, in the case of loans and
borrowings, directly atiributable fransaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and other current labilities
{excluding withholding tax payable) and due to shareholders,

As at December 21, 2012 and 2011, the Company does not have any fnancial Habilities at FYVPL
or derivatives designated as hedging instruments.
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Subseguent Measuremeni. After injtial recognition, interest-bearing loans end borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the affective interest method. Gains and losses ars
:{'ecognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effestive
imterest rate amortization process,

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the sffective interest rate, The effective nterest rale
amortization is included in interest expense in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Finaneial Liohilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the chligation
under the Hability is discharged or cancelied or has supired,

When an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender o substantially
different termms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiaily modified, such an sxchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recogmition of & new
liability. The difference in the respsetive carrying amounis is 1 cognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Finaneial lnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statemenis
of financial position if, and only if, thers is a currently enforeeabls legal right to offset the
recognized amounts; and there is an imiention to settle on & net basis, or to realize the asseis and
settle the Habilities stimultanecusly. This is not generally the case with master netting agreemernts,
therefore, the related assets and Habilities are presented at gross in the statementis of financisl
position.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis

The fair value of fnancial instruments that are fraded in active markets af sach rsporting period 5
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for fransaction costs. When
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidencs of the current fair value as long as thers has not been 2 significant change in eConNOMIC
circurmsiances since the time of the transacticn.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the far value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may inglude:

Using recent arm's-length markst transactions;
» Referencs to the current fair value of another instrument that iz substantially the sams; o
o 4 discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation modsis.

Eouity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all sharss issued, Incremental costs incurred dirsctly
atteibutzble to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity 25 2 deduction from orocesds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair vatue of considerations recefved in excess of par valug are recognized as
additional paid-in capital,

Earnings per shars

Basic earnings per share {(EPS) amounts are calcuiated oy dividing net income for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares ousstanding during the year. The Company has ao
dilutive potential common shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same a8 diluted BPS,
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Revenuss

Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow o the
Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payvment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable, mking
into acconnt contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty, The Company
assesses iis revenue arrangsments agzinst specific criteria in order o determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. B

Tnterzst Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest acorues, taking inte account ths sffective
visld on the asset.

Exercise Fess, Revenue is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to comman shares,

Expenses ,
Expenses presented as “Operaiing expenses” in the statoments of comprehensive ineome ars
recognized as incurrad, '

Taxes

Carent Income Taxe, Current income tax assels and liahilities for the current period are measur é
af the amount expected 1o be recoverad from or paid to the faxation autharmes The tax reiss a
tay laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially fﬁamad at
reporting period.

Current incoms tax rslating to items resognized directly in egquity is recognized in squity and not
in profit or loss. Management periodieally evaiuates positions taken in the tax raturns with respect
1o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establ!
provisions wheres appropriste.

&

)

Deferred Income Tmx. Deferred incoms tax is prwmed using the lability methos on emporasy
differences at reporting period betwsen the taxt bases of assets and Habiiities and their sarevin g
smounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting pericd.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductibie temporery differences, carmyforvard benefits
of excess minimum corporate income tax {MCIT) and unused nef operating loss carryover
(NOLCO), to the sxtent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available ageinst which the
deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefite of sxeess MCIT and unused
NOLCO can be utilized, except where the deferred tax asset ra}atmg to the dedustibls temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of ar: asset or Hability in & transaction that s nota
business combination and, at the time of the ransaction, affects neither the accounting profit aor
iaxable profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax sssets is reviewad at each roporting period a and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availabls to allow all or part

of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unvecognized deferred tax pssefs are roassessed at sach
reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probabis thar fisturs texable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Diefarred tax liabilities are recognizsd for all taxable temporary differences, sxoept whers the
deferred tax Iam;zty arises from the initial recognition of goodwill of an asset or Habiliy in e
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit,




Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measursd at the tax rates that are expected o apply t0 the
year when the asset {5 realized or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be
enactad or substantially enacted at the reporting period,

Deforred tax assets and Habilities are offset, if a legally snforceable right exists to offse! current
tax assels againgt current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sams faxable entity and
the same taxation suthority,

e

bl

Income iax relating © other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income
section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Value-added Teoe (FAT). Revenus, expenses and agseis are recognized nef of the amount of VAT,

The net amount of VAT recoverabls from, or payable to, the taxation autherity is included as part
of “Prepaid tax” or “Accounts payable and other current Habilities” accounts in the staterments of
financial position.

Provisiong
Provisions are recognized when the Company has 2 present obligation (legal or construciivel az a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying goonomic penefis will
be required 1o seitie the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized &s a separate assel but only when the receipt of the reimburssment is virmally certain,

£

Contingencies

Contingent Habilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the
noies to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of rescurces embodying
sconomic benefiis is remote. Comtingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes 1o fnancizl statements when an inflow of economic benefits i probable,

Events after Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provids additional information about the Company's posiiion at the
reporting period (adjusting svents} are reflectsd in the financial statements. Post year-end svents
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes fo financial statements whan matsrial,

Summary of Significant Acconnting Judgment, Estimaies and sssumphions

The preparation of Company’s financial staterments requires management o meke udgment,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and ralated
notes at the end of the reporting period. Howsver, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require & material adjustment io the sarTying amount of the
gsset or lability affected in-futurs periods.

Judgment

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made judgment
on its functional currency, which has the most significant effsct on the amounts resognized in the
financial statements.

Functional Ciurrency. The Company has determined that its functional currsney is the Philippine
neso. It is the currency of the primary economic envirgnment in which the Company operalss.




Hatimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrving
amounts of aszets and lisbilities within the next financial vear, ave described beiow, The
Company based ifs assumptions and estimaies on parameters availablie when the finansial
statermnents were prepared. Existing circumstances and sssumptions about futurs developments,
however, may change due to markst changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Company, Such changss are reflecisd in the assumptions when they occur,

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company’s assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax 2ssefs on nondeductible temporary differences and canviorward benefis of NOLCO
and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income in the subsequent pericds. This
forecast is based on the Company’s fiturs expectations on revenue and expenssg

in 2012, the Company made a reassessment on the realizebility of the deferrad tax assels, Based
on the Company’s judgrnent, taxable income in the futurs periods may not be sufficient against
witich the deductible temporary difference and carrvforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO,
respectively, can be utilized,

The Company did not recognize deferred 1ax assais amounting to 80,72 million as at
December 31, 2012, Recognizad deferred tax asseis as at Decamber 31, 2011 amounied
£0,46 million (ses Nots 10,

Fair Value of Flrnancicl Assets and Liakilivies. The *’“ampz‘m}f carriss certain financial aszets and
Habilities at fair valus, which requires the uge of seonunting estimates and judgment. The
significant components of Tair valus messursment were determined using verifiable objective
svidence {1.8., interest raies), However, the Hming and amount of changes in fair value would
differ if the Company utilized different valuation methodologies and assumptions, Any changes
in the fan* va!uc: of thesa nnanmal assets ana Habilities would affest the reported fair value of these

The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and labilities are discussed in Nots 13

Philippine Deposit Receinis

On Juby 30, 2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 PDRs relating to 822,113 {ZS \,.;IVLA shares,
Cn August 21, 2007, additional 123,317 ﬂ@@ FDRs wers issued relating t “;2
shares. Each PDR was issusd for a total consideration of 88.50,

Fach PDIR grants the holders, upon payment of the sxercise price and subject &o sertain other
conditions, ‘the delivery of one (1) GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the procseds of'su
sale of one (1) GMA share. The Company remains o be the registersd owner of the GMA sharss
covered by the PDRs, The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.

The GMA shares are atill subject to ownership resirictions on shavss of corporations ﬁng"gecﬁ in
mess media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares fo persons other than Philippine G 1815,
The PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 38, 2007, and the same may be exercised af any time
from said date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares r mwad
by the Company shall be applied toward the operating expenges of the Company for the current
and preceding vears. A farther amount equal to the opsrating sxpenses in the preceding year shall
be set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in exesss
of the aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be
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distributed to PR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividsads are received
bry the Company. '

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an sxercise price of 20,05 per share shall be paid by the PDR holders.
The exercise price is shown as “Bxercise fees” account in the statements of comprehensive
income. Exercise foes amounted to B0.22 million, nil and B1.08 million i 20612, 2017 and 2010,
respectively.

Immediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additiona! issuances dascribed above,
GMA, to which the Company is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares 1o the Company
in relation to which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not sxsreised, the shares
underlying the PDRs will continue to be registerad in the name of and owned by the Company,
and all rights pertaining to these sharss, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the
Company. The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the riglt
comtained in the PDRs are secured by the Pledge of Shares in faver of the Pledge Trustes acting on
behalf of each holder of a PDR over the GMA. shares,

At any time after the PDR offering, a sharsholder may, at his option and from tims 1o time, daliver
shares to the Company in exchangs for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded vatue of GMA shares ai the time of transaction with the corresponding FDR
option price.

As mentioned above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows fom {15 invesunent
in GMA and assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows o the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (a “pass-through” arrangement). The “pass-through” test is met because the
Company (a) has no obligation to the PDR holders unless it collects squivalent ameunts from ifs
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in
M A other than as security 1o the PDDR holders for the abligation to pay the cash flows, and

(¢} has an cbligation to remit any cash flows from the investment in GMA to the PDR holders
without material delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is desmead to have sransferrad substantially the dsks
and rewards of its investment in IMA. Accordingly, the invesiment in GMA and the labilitiss
related 1o the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shareg for the
vears ended December 31:

PDRs Mumbsr of Shargs
2012 2011 2812 2011
Balance at beginning of year B7,376,668.500 P7,326,508,500 863,961 008 861,961,000
Exercize of PDRs {37.835.200) - {4,451,200) —
Balance at end of vear B7.288,833,308 $7,326,668,300 557,209,864 251,981,000

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.26 per shars,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to 8223.87 million to all shareholders of record
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as at August 22, 2012, These were remitted to PDR holders on September 14, 2012,

On March 28, 2612, the Company approved a cash disiribution 1o PDR holders of #0.40 per shars,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to B344.62 million to 2l shershaiders of record
as at April 16, 2012, These were remitted to PDR holders on May g, 2012,
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On March 11, 2011, the Company approved cash distribution to PDR holders of #0.45 per share,

in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to 387,88 million to all sharsholders of record

ss at April 8, 2011, These were remitted to FDR holders on May 6, 2011

Fvent after Reporting Period

£ e

On March 21, 2013, the Corepany approved cash diswibution to PDR holders of 20.25 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA. to zil shareholders of record as at April 17, 2012

LAY 3 T 1N

v

Tn 2012, the Company declared 259 per share cash dividends amounting to 22
stockholders of record as of May 25, 2012, This was paid on Juns 8, 2012.

The Company has no dividend declaration in 21 1.

Tn. 2010, the Company declared 2300 per share cash dividends amounting 0 23
stockiiolders of record as at May 29, 2010. This was paid on June 4, 2010,

=
amd

3 million to ail

I million o all

%. Cash and Cash Eguivalents
2017 2011
Cash on hand and in banks 82,752,885 83,623,828
Short-term deposits 45,309,468 46,435,178
248,061,553 250,059,007
Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash regquirsments of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
Tnterest incomne earmed from bank depesits and short-term deposits amounied to 21.69 million,
21.97 million and 22.68 million in 2012, 2017 and 2010, respectively.
7. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
2812 24011
Accounts payable ROOLH BE 380
Agcrued expenses:
Professional and trust fees 470,989 231,154
Others 2,130 3258
Withholding tax pavable 44 -
P4§3073 2241032
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses are nonimtersst-bearing and are normaily settled within
the next finaneial year. Accrued expenses represent accrued audit foes, retainers’ fees and pelly
CaSH EXpEISes.
Withholding tax payable represents liabilitiss to the Burean of Internal Revenue (BIR) for the
remittance of final taxes withheld on dividend payments made to PDR holders. Thesears
soninterest-bearing and are sxpested to be remitted within 13 days after reporting period.
3. Eguily
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The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with the
8EC as requirad by Securitiss Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended {2011}

Authorized Mumber

Mumber of Issued izzue/

Diate of SEC anproval of shares Shares {Offar Price
July 34, 2007 945,432,600 545,432,000 2830

9. Operating Expenses

2812 2017 200

Listing fees BE60,275 PGO5,085 RROT62Z2

Professional fees £75,838 327.60% i%l?i? DEG

Taxes and licenses 33,239 27128 24,374

(Others 24,508 17,176 22,580

$1.097.954 £1,266,395 B 264 964

10. Income Taxes

Current Inpome Tax
The components of the Company’s provision for current incoms tax are as follows:

2012 2011 2014

Final iax interest B337,512 B303,718 #536,312
MOIT 4451 — 21,661
B341,963 P393.718 B3537,973

The reconciiigtion of the pmwsmn for incoms tax compited at stafutory income ax ras and te
provision for income tax as shown in the statements of semprehensive income is summarized as
follows:

203Z 2011 2010

Income tax computed at statuiory
income tax rate 243 420 8318.5369 2748 340
Deduction in income iax resulting from -
Interest income from short-term
placements and bank deposiis

already subjectsd o final tax {168,528} {196,360 {268,157
Changs in unresognized deferred tax
a3561s 723,368 - -

B798,262 #13,708 2481,683




Deferred Tax Assels
The components of deferrad tax assets follow:

2012 1

{larscoonized} )

MCIT B24,113 t.a&1
NGLCO 597,256 434 538
B723.368 R4ng 200

As at December 31, 2012, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction fom future RCIT

due and taxable income, respectively:

Date Paid/Incurred Carryforward Benefii Up To MCIT NOLDC
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2013 B21,861 RIAZ,098
Degember 31,2011 December 31, 2014 _ 1,266,595
December 31,2012 Degember 31, 2015 4451 875,384
825,112 23 324 187
The mavements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:
2812 2011
NCLLCO:
Balance at the beginning of the year P1,448,753
Additions 875,394
Balance at end of vear $21.324,187
MCIT:
Balance a1 the beginning of the year §11,661 771,661
Additions 4,451 -
Hajance at end of vear 226,112 11,661

e

Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirsctly, to coniTo
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common

sonirol.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Transactons with related parties have been enterad info af terms no less favorable than could have
heen obtained if the transactions wers entsred into with unrelated parties, In 2012 and 2011, no
ransactions have besn entered into by the Company with its related parties.

Amount/Veolume Due to
Catesary Vear  of Transagtions Sharehoiders Terms Conditinng
Shareholders ‘
Partion of procesds retained 2012 2 247,271,680 Upon demand, non- Unseoured
from issuancs of PLRs 2011 - 47.271,600  interest bearing

The outstanding baiances of “Due to Selling Sharsholders” pertains to the option Drics emounting
0 B0.05 per PDR which was retained by the Company, as the PDR issuer, in sonsideration for the
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rights granted under the PDRa, In acoordance with the terms and conditions of the PDRE offer, the
Company agrees that on exercise of any PDRs, only the exercise price amounting P8.45 shall be
pavable.

The Company®s key management personnel are employed by GMA znd no part of their salaries
was allocated to the Company.

ot
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. Financizl Bisk Mapagement Objectives and Polizies

The Company’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main
purposes of these financial instruments include raising finencing for the Company’s operations
and managing identified financial risks. The Company has other financial assets and liabilities
such as acoounts receivable, acoounts payable and other cwrrent liabilities (fexcinding withholding
tax payable) and due to shareholders, which arise directly from its opsrations. The main risis
arising from the Company’s financial instuments ars Hguidity risk, intersst rate risk and oredit
risk.

The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies.

Lignidity Risk. The Company is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would resuit in substantially higher working capital
requirements and subseguently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Comparny manages its lguidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations 1o
meet its short-term liguidity nesds. The Compeny likewiss regularly evaluates other finaneing
instramenis and arrangements to broaden the Company’s rangs of financing sources.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets nsad for
liguidity risk management purposes and financial Habilities based on contractual undiscounted
nayments ag at December 31:

2012
On Demand 3 45 12 Months Toial
Cash and cash eguivalemts P48,061,553 2 B4R 061,553
Accounts pavable and other
gurrent linbilitiess 483,929 2. £482 025
Diue to shareholders 47,271,600 - 47,271,600
BLTTR4.029 B 247,754,629
2012
CUm Demand 3 to 12 Months Taoh
Cash and cash equivalents B50,080,607 B B5D 059,007
Accounis payable and other
current labilites® RI41.032 B P241.032
Due io shareholders 47,271,600 — 47271600
B47 512,632 - . 247 512,632

" #Exchsding withhelding tox pyable which is nof considered g5 o flnancial Bobilig
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The following table demonsirates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change'in interest rates,
wiih all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before Income tax from reporting
period up to next reporting perind. There is no impact on the Company’s squity other than those
already affecting profit or loss,

Increase Effect on
{Tiecrease) in - Income Before
Hasis Points mcome T
2812 50 BI40.283
{30} {240,283y
2011 50 250,295
50 (750,295

Craglt Risk, Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, i3 controiled by the application of
credit approvals, [imits and monitoring procedures. 1t is the Company’s policy to enter into
transactions with & diversity of ereditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of
cradit risk, The Company ensures that services are made o customers with appropriate eredit
history. The Company has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and
manapsment of credit exposures. The Company has made provisions, where necessary, for
potential losses on credits exiended. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of
the counierparty with a maximum exposure equal (0 the carying amount of the instruments. T
Company does not require any collateral for iis financial assets. '

o

=
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The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standard
grade as internal credif ratings.

High Grade. Pertains to a counterparty whe is not sxpected by the Company o default in settling
its obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes large prime financial
institutions and ralated parties,

g
Stamdard Grode. Other financial assets not classified as high grade are inclnded in this category.

The Company clessified its cash and cash equivalents {excluding cash on hand) and acoounts
receivable as high grade financial assets as af Decemnber 31, 2012 and 2011,

As at December 31, the aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

2817 2013

Neither past due nor impaired Br23.432 BI03,535
Past due but not impairsd:

31-60 days - -

61-150 days - -

151-3635 days o 800

P155,432 B204,335

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it mainiaing 2 sonn;
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shargholder
value,

Lt
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The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 1o itintha i

sconomic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capiial structure, the Company may

dividand payment to shareholders, payoff existing debis, refurn capite! o sharsholders

1o

new shares.

ght of changss it
ay gdjust the

W

o Issue

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the thrae vears snded

Tiecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 20106,

The Company’s capital management is undertaken by GMA. The capital includssg
which amounted to 20.67 million and B3 25 million as at December 31, 2012 and
respsciively.

th
“44YE
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e total squity,
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. Financial Asseis and Liabilities

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Company’s Tinansial

instruments, by category and by class, as af Dacember 31

m

2012 2011
Carrving Yalue Fpir Value Carrying Valus Fair Yrius
Financial Assets
Loans and recsivables:
Cash and cash equivaleniz B45.061,553 248,067,553 B50,055,007 B0 038 007
Agcounts receivable 183,432 353,432 204,338 204,339
B48,314,988 248,314,983 B5( 263,346 50,283 345
Fingneial Linbilities
Other financial Habilities:
Agsourits pavable and
gther current Habilitles® B4R3,029 B4%3,028 #241,032 =241,037
[Jus to shareholders 47,271,800 47,271,580 47271,600 47,271,600
B47,754,62% B47,754,628 B47, 512,632 247,512,632

RErrhsding withholing mx payable which 13 not ronsidarad ag a fnancial kil

The carrying vaiues of the above financial instruments are the approximate Tair vaiues gus 1o tha

relatively short-ierm maturity.

Fair Vatue Higrarshy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value

financial instruments by valuation technigue:

—
3

2. Level ] - quoted prices {unadjusted) in aciive markets for identical assets or Habiiltiss;

b. Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices inciuded within Level | that ars cbservable for the
asset or lability, either directly {i.s., as prices) or indirsetly (i.e., derived from prices); and

¢. Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability rhat are not based on observable market data

{unobservabie inpuis).

e

Ag at December 31,
any valuation techniques.

2012 ang 2011, there were ne fnancial assets meesured at fair value

URITE

There were no fransfers between Level 1 and Levei 2 fair value measurements, and no transters
1,

a

it and out of Level 3 fair value measurements during the years ended December 3

2011,

2012 and
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14, Basie/Diluted Tarnings Per Shars Computation

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as Tollows:

2013 2011 2010

Net income atiributable to equity holders (g} 13,139 PRARIET B2 017,783
Common shares issues at beginning and end -

of year (b) 10,008 16,008 1,000

Basic/Diluteq Earnings Per Share (a/b) B1.31 528.52 530178

Yk
L

. Suppiementary Information Required by Revenue Regniations (RR) No, 13-2011
and 15-2010

o

RR 19-2011

RR 19-2011 was issued to prescribe the new BIR forms that will be used for Income Tax filin
covering and starting with December 31, 2011, and to modiiy Revenue Memorandurm Ciroular
No. 57-2011 dated Mevember 25, 201 1.

i

The following are the schedules prescribed under sxisting revenue issuances appiicable to the
Company as at December 31, 2012

2. Sehedule of emized Deductions

Professional fess 8479835
Taxes and Hoenses 33,238
Miscellansous 24 505
Others - listing fee 360,273
21,007 954
b. Taxes and Licsnses
Official Receipt Number  Date paid Amount
Mayor’s Permit ASCCRISE0230-5 Ianuary 17, 2012 220,250
Barangay Clearance 598737 January 17, 2012 1,650
Community Ceriificate 94488 January 18, 2012 1,83%
Annual Registration EFP Japuary 31, 2812 500
RR3730
RR 152010

The Company reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2012:
a. Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Company’s purchases from VAT-registersd individusls or corporations ars subject 1o
input VAT. The VAT rate is 12%.

Balance at January 1 P30,428
Current vear's demestic purchases for:
Services lodged undsr other accounis 59,367

Total claims at December 31 BOD. 756
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L, Other Taxes and Licsnses

e
14
h

All other local and national taxes paid for the year snded December 31, 2012 oconsis

Local taxes and license fess B/I7,
Fegistration faes

Withholding Taxes

Final withhoiding tax RET AT 161
xpanded withholding tax 11,248
BEZADE 410
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INDIEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
ON EUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Bosrd of Directors
OMA Holdings, Inc.

Unit 5D Tower One, One MoKinley Place
Mew Bonifzcio Global City

Fort Bonifacic, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
3MA Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 21, 2013, Our audits wers made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
staternents taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011,
and are not part of the basic financial statements, These schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedurss applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, i all
material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial
statements iaken as a whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Clairma T, Mangangsy
Pariner
CPA Certificate Mo, 36898
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid untll February 1, 2615
Tax Identification Mo, 128-434-867
BIR. Acereditation No. 08-001598-67-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid untii April 10, 2015
PTR No. 3669697, January 2, 2613, Makati City

March 21, 2013
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GMaA HOLDIMGS, INC.

INDEX TO FINANCIAL ETATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY

SCHEDULES
AS AT DECERMBER 31, 2012

I Supplemental schedules required by Annex 68-E

A

B

,t:,j

G.

H

Financial assets

Amounts recetvable from dirsciors, officers, employaes,
relgted parties and principal stockholders (other than
related parties;

Amounts of receivables from related parties which are
eliminated during consolidation process of fnancial
sfatements

intangibie assets - other assat

Long-term debt

Indebiedness to related partie

Guarantees of securities of other issuers

Capital stock

. Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations

1. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend

Declaration

TV, Map of the relationshins of the Company within the Group

Attached

1t

Mot applicabie

ot applicabls

Mot applicabie
Not applicabls
Mot applicable
Aftached

Attached

Attached

Mot applicabis
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GhiA HOLDINGS, INC,
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 65-E
AS AT DECEMEBER 31,2012
Schedale A. Financial Assels
Amount shown  Valns bassd on
MNeme of Issping entity  Number of shares or I the statements  market quotation Income
and association of each  principal amount of of fnancial at end of received and
issuse bonds and rates position  reporting periocd aosomed
Cash
Om hand B #5,000 Fe P
In banks - 2,747 083 - 28 266
- 2,753,085 - 48,265
Cash sguivalents
Unien Bank of - -
the Philippines 20,611,244 DR3,807
Banco De Oro - 24,698,224 - 872,622
— 45 308,468 — 1,658,528
P B48 061,553 2. PB1,586795
Schedule H. Capital Stock
Number of MNumber of
Shares fesusd and Sharss
Oufstanding as ~ Reserved for
Shown Under Ovptions,
Related Warrants,  Number of
Humber of Stntements of Conversion  Shares Held THreoiors,
Tiile of Shares Financial and Other by Related Oyfficers, and
Issue Authorize¢  Position Caption Rights Partiss Frolovess  Uihers
Common 10,000 10,000 - - 14,000 -
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE REQUIRED UNDER SRC RULE 68, A8 ARMENDED (2011}
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

anmlizabin

Framework for the Preparation and Present
Financial Statements

Coneeptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

stion of

PERSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRE 1
{Revised}

Firsi-iime Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and BAS 27; Cost
of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adoplers

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited
Exemption from Comparative PFRE 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRE 1 Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Diate
{or First-time Adopiers

Amendments to PFRE 1 Government
Loans

PFRS1

Share-hased Payvment

Amendments to PFRS 21 Vesting
Conditions and Cancslistions

Amendments to PFRS 2! Group Casb-
settled Share-based Pavment Trapsactions

PYRE 3
{Revised)

Business Combinations

FPFRS 4

Tnsurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and FFRS 4
Financial Guarantee Contracts

PERES

Non-current Assets Hald for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

PYFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Minersl
Resources

PFRB 7

Tinaneial Instruments: Disclosres

Amendmentis to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
B eclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments o PAS 30 and PFRE 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets -
Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving
Thscloswres about Financial Instrumenis

Amendments to PERS 7: Disclosores -
Transfers of Financial Asseis

B,




wn B

T Amendments to PERS

: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financiat

H

Amendments to PFRE 7: Mandatory
Effective Date of PFES 9 and Transition
Disclosurss

PHRS 8 Omperating Segments
PY¥RE 9% Financial Instraments
Agpendments to PFRS 90 Mandatory
PFRE 107 Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures
Consclidated Financial Statements
PERS 11* Joint Arrangements
PERE 12% Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
PERS i3* Fair Vahie Messurement

Philippine Accounting Siandards

PAR 1L Presentation of Financial Statements S
{Hevised) Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosurss v
: Amendments to PAS 22 and PAS 1. W
Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Chligations Arising on Liguidation
Amendmenis to PAS 1: Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Incoms
PAS 2 Tnventories S
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows o
PASE Accounting Policies, Changes in v
Accounting Estimatss and Errors
PAS 10 Bvenis after the Reporting Period ¥ ]
PAR 11 Construction Contracts o
PAS 12 Income Taxes o
PAS 16 Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: ¥
Recovery of Underlying Assets
Property, Plant and Eguipment o
PAs 17 Leases
PAS 18 Revenue o
PAS 19 Emplovee Benefits o
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gaing 7
and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 15 Emplovee Benefits
{Amended)® |
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and ¥
Trisclosure of Covernment Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign v
Exchange Ratesg J

Amendment: Met Investment in a Foreign
Operation




PAS 23
{Revised)

Pl B e B T S B i vl L g ]
Borrowing Costs

PAR 34
{Revised)

Related Party Disclosures

PAB 24

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement
Benefit Plans

PAS 27

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

PAS 27
{Amended)®

Separaste Financial Statements

PAE 28

Investments in Associates

FAS 28
{Amended)*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Yeniures

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Heoonomies

PAS 31

Interests in Joint Yentures

PAS 32

Finsncial Instruments: Presentation

Amendments o PAS 32 and BAS 1:
Puitahle Financial Instruments and
Tblgations Arising on Liguidaiion

Amendment to PAS 32 Classification of
Rights Issuss

Amendments 1o PAS 32: Offsetting

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

] %

PAS 36

Impairment of Assels

PAS 3T

Provisions, Contingent Lisbilities and
Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

PAS 3%

Finapcial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and
Initial Recogmition of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendmenis to PAR 39: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Infragroup
Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value
Cotion

Amendments to PAS 3% and PFES 4:
Financial Guarantes Coniracts

Amendments to PAS 32 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Floancial Assets

Amendmenis 1o PAS 35 and FFES 72
Reclassifization of Financial Assefs —
Fffective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Inferprefation




HDEX T

Fage 4 ol 3

T

IFRIC-9 and PAS 39 Embedded
Dearlvatives

Amendment to PAS 39 Bligible Hedged
frems

Investment Property

FAE 40

Agriculiurs

PAE 41

Philippine Interpreiations

IFRIC T

Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
Regioration and Simdlar Liabilities

FRIC 2

Members' Share in Co-cperative Entities
and Similar Ingtraments

FRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease

IFRIC S

Rights to Interests arising fom
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

FRIC 6

Tiabilities arising from Participating in a
Specific Market - Waste Electrical and
Electromc Equipment

IFRICT

Applying the Restatement Approach under
PAS 20 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinfiztionary Economies

IFRICSE

Seope of PFRS 2

IFRIC D

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

FRIC 1D

Amendments to Philippins Interpretation
IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded
Derivatives

R

WRIC 1

Interim Financial Reporiing and
Imipairment

FRIC 12

PFRS 2- Group and Treaswry Share
Transactions

IFREC 13

Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 14

Customer Lovalty Programmes

The Limit on 5 Defined Benefit Assat,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

RS R

TFRIC 18

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations
[ERIC- 14, Prepayments of 2 Minimum
Funding Requirement

Hedges of a Net Investment in 2 Forsign
Operation

IFRIC 17

Mzimibutdons of Non-cash Agsets o
{waers

IFRIC 18

Transfers of Assets from Customers

IFRIC 18

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Eguity [nstruments

IFRIC 26

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surfzce Mine




m 7.

Tntroduction of the Buro o

SIC-18 Government Assistance - No Specific o
Relation to Operating Activities

§iC-12 Conschdation - Special Purpose Entitiss W
Amendment o SiC - 12: Scope of SIC 13 o

SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monstary o
Contributions by Venturers

8iC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives

SiC.25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status o
of an Fotity or its Shareholdsrs

SIC-2Y Hvaluating the Substance of Transactions ¥
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

51C-25 Service Concession AITENgsments: N
Diisclosurss.

SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving v
Advertiging Services

SEC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Cosis W

Note: Standards and Tnierpretations under the “Not Applicable” column are gffective as ai
TNecember 31, 2012 but for which no iransactions of the Company for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 are deemed covered.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

SCHEDULE OF RETAINED TARNINGS AVAILABLE

FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Unappropriated retained garnings, beginning #3,150,27
Adjustments -

Deferred tax assels, beginming {455,250%
Unapproprated retained earnings, as adjusted, beginning 2,692,977
Net income during the year closed o retained sarnings 13,130
Trividends declaration during the nericd (7,393,597
Retained earmings - available for

dividend declaration as at December 31, 2012 B113,119




